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By email to: 
 
Guildford Borough Council:  Victoria Bates; Gemma Fitzpatrick 
Surrey Wildlife Trust:   Robert Hutchinson 
 
 
.cc Robert Shatwell, Chairman West Surrey Badger Group 
 
10th October 2023 

 

Planning application ref 23/D/00018/5 Discharge of condition 4 (Landscape and Ecology 

Management Plan) for 20/P/00825 

Dear Victoria 

In the view of Merrow Downs Residents’ Group, the applicant still fails to provide sufficient evidence 

as to the nature and extent of badger activity on Merrow Downs and the Urnfield to ensure 

compliance with the Badger Protection Act 1992. 

1. We noticed that wildlife camera traps were set up (presumably by Tormead’s ecologists or 

their subcontractors) on three sett entrance holes during week commencing 2nd October. The 

cameras were in situ on Monday 2nd October but by Thursday 5th October they had been 

removed.  

 

The guidance for developers produced by the Badger Trust states that activity surveys should 

take place over a period of no less than three weeks, not three days (see appendix). 

 

2. No camera trap was set up to log activity at the new entrance hole at the northwest of the 

Urnfield site, as identified in our letter dated 1st October.  

 

Has the applicant sought to establish whether there is a large sett (as reported in our letter 

of 18th August 2023) adjacent to the eastern boundary of the Urnfield site, in the privately 

owned field? It is critical to establish the presence (or not) of such a sett and its relationship 

to the other setts in the area, to produce a coherent badger mitigation plan and to avoid 

harming this protected species.   

These two setts / entrance holes should be included in the LEMP, and a 30m buffer zone 

needs to be established (and added to the construction plan drawing approved as part of 
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Condition 3) around both setts / entrance holes before any construction takes place, to avoid 

contravention by the applicant or its contractor of the Badger Protection Act 1992. They also 

need to be included in the method statement included in any licence for mitigation works to 

be sought from Natural England. 

3. According to the LEMP, an activity survey has only ever been undertaken at setts 1 and 2, and 

this data is already over a year old (April/May 2022). Guidance from the Chartered Institute 

for Ecological and Environmental Management – with which Greengage is a registered 

practice - indicates that the data lifespan for badger surveys is less than 12 months. 

https://cieem.net/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Advice-Note.pdf 

The relevant extract from this guidance note (April 2019) is given below: 

 

 
 

4. We request again that a FULL survey of badger setts and activity be undertaken, to include 

the Urnfield site and adjacent woodland and fields. This should include not only the new sett 

entrance holes that our group identified during the summer, but the setts already known 

about and included in previous versions of the LEMP, the data for which is now past its 

lifespan.  

 

Walkovers on single day visits and 3-day camera traps of a few entrance holes are 

insufficient. Data that is 18 months old needs to be updated properly, as per the CIEEM 

guidance. 

 

https://cieem.net/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Advice-Note.pdf
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5. By way of illustration, the sett 75m to the east of sett 2 was categorised as a subsidiary sett 

by Greengage in its letter to GBC dated 25 April 2023 whereas the LEMP now states it is a 

main sett, yet no activity survey (in accordance with Badger Trust recommendations) of the 

site and the woodland has been done to explain the change in classification. The 

classification appears to have been changed as a result of single day visits in June and 

September by Ecology Co-Op, as listed in the LEMP.  

 

6. In addition, these seven setts / entrance holes have been assessed as in use by one badger 

family, without using (as far as we know) bait marking methodology which would provide 

conclusive evidence of this, and ensure that mitigation plans are appropriate (they would 

need to be different if more than one family is affected by the sett closures). 

 

We are aware that setts are not static, and so a full activity survey should include all known setts and 

seek to identify any new ones; this is clearly stated as a “must”, pre-commencement, in the Badger 

Trust guidance (see below). The current LEMP identifies seven relevant setts. The survey should 

include those surveyed in spring 2022 and those as yet unsurveyed.  

Reliance on a partial survey of three day’s duration, and of only 3 sett entrance holes (which were 

identified by residents and not the applicant’s ecologists) suggests that the applicant is taking short 

cuts in order to meet its timetable for the development, regardless of the impact on a protected 

species and the legal implications of that designation. 

As stated in the Badger Trust 2023 guidance for developers and local planning authorities, badger 

setts are protected by law if there are signs of current occupation, even if they are not being used at 

the time of any survey (see appendix). 

Given the inadequate and incomplete evidence that continues to be presented by the applicant in 

relation to badger protection, in our view the Council should refuse the discharge of condition 4 

(LEMP). 

 

Kind regards 

Katherine Atkinson 

For Merrow Downs Residents’ Group 
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Appendix 

Extracts from Badger Trust Guidance for Developers and LPAs (2023), pp6-8 
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